PRIVATE COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

A3AFCC4G A22 20/06/2014 #53

A22 20/06/2014 COMPANIES HOUSE

WRITTEN RESOLUTIONS

OF

RDS ASBESTOS MANAGEMENT CONSULTANTS [UK] LIMITED (the "Company")

(Company number: 04421269)

Circulation Date 13 JUNE

2014 ("Circulation Date")

Pursuant to Chapter 2 of Part 13 of the Companies Act 2006 ("Act"), the directors of the Company propose that the resolution below be passed as a special resolution (the "Resolution")

SPECIAL RESOLUTION

1. THAT the draft regulations attached to this resolution be adopted as the articles of association of the Company (the "New Articles") in substitution for, and to the exclusion of, the existing articles of association

AGREEMENT

Please read the notes at the end of this document before signifying your agreement to the Resolution

The undersigned, being the sole person entitled to vote on the Resolution on the Circulation Date,

herebylurge beably agrees to the Resolution.

JAWIF CONSTABLE - MEMBER

For a dia bound of OBS 24 LLP - Director

Reghill Analysts Limited

13 JUNE 2014

Date

NOTES

- If you agree to the Resolution, please indicate your agreement by signing and dating this document where indicated above and returning it to the Company using one of the following methods.
 - if returning by Hand, by delivering the signed version to Messrs RadcliffesLeBrasseur, 5 Great College Street, Westminster, London SW1P 3SJ attention reference SWB/115583 8

W 4315868 v1

1

- If returning by Post by sending the signed version of this document to Messrs RadcliffesLeBrasseur, 5 Great College Street, Westminster, London SW1P 3SJ attention reference SWB/115583 8
- if returning by Fax, by faxing the signed copy of this document to 020 7222 7040 marked "For the attention of Reference SWB/115583 8"
- If returning by E-mail by attaching a scanned copy of the signed version of this
 document, to an e-mail and sending it to stephen blair@rlb-law com
- 2 If you do not agree to the passing of the Resolution you do not need to do anything. Failure to respond does not deem agreement to the Resolution
- 3 Once you have indicated agreement to the Resolution, you may not revoke your agreement
- 4 The Resolution will be passed once the required majority of eligible members have signified their agreement to the resolution by one of the required methods set out in paragraph 1 above.
- 5. Unless, by 5 30 pm on day falling 28 days beginning with the Circulation Date, sufficient agreement has been received for the Resolution to pass, they will lapse. If you agree to the Resolution, please ensure that your agreement reaches us before or during this date.
- 6 In the case of joint holders of shares, only the vote of the senior holder who votes will be counted by the Company Seniority is determined by the order in which the names of the joint holders appear in the register of members
- If you are signing this document on behalf of a person under a power of attorney or other authority please send a copy of the relevant power of attorney or authority when returning this document

ATTACH NEW ARTICLES

THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

PRIVATE COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

OF

RDS ASBESTOS MANAGEMENT CONSULTANTS [UK] LIMITED

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

Adopted on 13 JUNE 2014

δεφγ

5 Great College Street Westminster London SW1P 3SJ www.rlb-law.com A

Tel +44 (0)20 7222 7040 Fax +44 (0)20 7222 6208 LDE 113 info@rlb-law.com

Our RefSWB/SAC/119141 001 Doc W 4321217 v1

CONTENTS

<u>Heading</u> Page Number	
1	ADOPTION OF MODEL ARTICLES
2	DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION
3	QUORUM AND VOTING RIGHTS AT GENERAL MEETINGS
4	NEW ISSUES OF SHARES
5.	ARTICLE A
6	DIRETORS GENERAL AUTHORITY
7	APPOINTMENT AND RETIREMENT OF DIRECTORS
8	PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS
9	DIRECTORS' ARRANGMENTS AND TRANSACTIONAL INTERESTS
10	AUTHORISATION OF DIRECTORS' CONFLICTS OF INTEREST8
11	QUORUM FOR DIRECTORS MEETINGS
12	VOTING RIGHTS OF DIRECTORS
13	ALTERNATE DIRECTORS
14	SECRETARY
15	INDEMNITY
16	INSURANCE
17	SHARE CERTIFICATES AND EVIDENCE
18	SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS AND RESERVES
19.	CHANGE OF NAME

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

QF

RDS ASBESTOS MANAGEMENT CONSULTANTS [UK] LIMITED (the "Company")

(Adopted by a special resolution passed on 13 JUNE 2014)

1. ADOPTION OF MODEL ARTICLES

- The Model Articles (as defined at Article 2 1) shall apply to the Company, except in so far as they are modified or excluded by, or are inconsistent with these Articles
- Model Articles 8 (Unanimous decisions), 11(2) and (3) (Quorum for directors' meetings), 13 (Casting vote), 14 (Conflicts of interest), 52 (Indemnity) and 53 (Insurance) shall not apply to the Company
- 1 3 Model Article 7 (Directors to take decisions collectively) shall be amended by.
 - the insertion of the words "for the time being" at the end of Model Article 7(2)(a), and
 - the insertion in Model Article 7(2) of the words "(for so long as he remains the sole director)" after the words "and the director may"
- In Model Article 8(2) (Unanimous decisions), the words "copies of which have been signed by each eligible director" shall be deleted and replaced with the words "of which each Eligible Director has signed one or more copies"
- 1 5 Model Article 20 (*Directors' expenses*) shall be amended by the insertion of the words "(including alternate directors) and the secretary" before the words "properly incur"
- 1 6 Model Article 27(3) (*Transmission of shares*) shall be amended by the insertion of the words ", subject to article 17(2)," after the word "But"
- Model Article 29 (Transmittees bound by prior notices) shall be amended by the insertion of the words ", or the name of any person(s) named as the transferee(s) in an instrument of transfer executed under article 28(2)," after the words "the transmittee's name"
- In Model Article 30(4), the words "the terms on which shares are issued" shall be deleted and replaced with "the rights attached to any shares"
- In Model Article 32(a), the words "the terms on which the share was issued" shall be deleted and replaced with "the rights attached to the share"
- 1 10 Model Article 44(3) shall be amended by the insertion of the words "A demand so

withdrawn shall not invalidate the result of a show of hands declared before the demand was made" as a new paragraph at the end of that Model Article

2. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

2.1 The definitions and interpretation provisions set out in this Article 2 apply in these Articles

Act: the Companies Act 2006

Articles: the Company's articles of association for the time being in force

Board: the board of Directors or the Directors present at a duly convened meeting of Directors in which a quorum is present and acting by resolution duly passed at such a meeting of the Directors or otherwise permitted by these Articles

Control: has the meaning prescribed by section 1124 of the Corporation Taxes Act 2010 and Controlled shall be interpreted accordingly

Directors: the directors of the Company for the time being, including any directors appointed pursuant to Article 7.2

Eligible Director: a Director who would be entitled to vote on the matter at a meeting of the Board (but excluding any Director whose vote is not to be counted in respect of the particular matter)

Group: the Company, any subsidiary of the Company, any company of which the Company is a subsidiary (its holding company) and any other subsidiaries of any such holding company, in each case for the time being, and "member of the **Group**" shall mean any of them

Model Articles: the model articles for private companies limited by shares contained in Schedule 1 of the Companies (Model Articles) Regulations 2008 (SI 2008/3229) as amended prior to the date of adoption of these Articles and reference to a numbered Model Article is a reference to that article of the Model Articles

Principal Director: the director designated from time to time to hold such position pursuant to Article 7.6

Principal Shareholder: the registered holder of all of the issued shares in the capital of the Company or the holding company (as defined at Article 2.2.1) of the Company. The Principal Shareholder as at the date of adoption of these Articles is Redhill HCO Limited (company number 08144349).

Relevant Loss: any loss or liability which has been or may be incurred by a Relevant Officer in connection with that Relevant Officer's duties or powers in relation to any member of the Group, or any pension fund or employees' share scheme of any member of the Group

Relevant Officer: has the meaning prescribed in Article 15 1

2 2 In these Articles

reference to holding company and subsidiary mean a "holding company" and "subsidiary" as defined in section 1159 of the Act and a company shall be treated, for the purposes only of the membership requirement contained in subsections 1159(1)(b) and (c), as a member of another company even if its shares in that other company are registered in the name of (a) another person (or its nominee), by way of security or in connection with the taking

of security, or (b) its nominee.

- 2 2 2 in the case of a limited liability partnership which is a subsidiary of a company or another limited liability partnership, section 1159 of the Act shall be amended so that
 - (a) references in sections 1159(1)(a) and (c) to voting rights are to the members' rights to vote on all or substantially all matters which are decided by a vote of the members of the limited liability partnership, and
 - (b) the references in section 1159(1)(b) of the Act to the right to appoint or remove a majority of its board of directors is to the right to appoint and remove members holding a majority of the voting rights,
- 2 2 3 words and phrases defined in the Act bear the meanings given to them in the Act unless given a different meaning in these Articles,
- use of the singular is deemed to include the plural, use of any gender is deemed to include every gender and any reference to a person is deemed to include a body corporate, a corporation, a partnership, an unincorporated association and other body or entity, and (in each case) vice versa.
- 2 2 5 reference to any statute or statutory provision includes a reference to that statute or statutory provision as from time to time amended, extended or re-enacted. This Article 2 2 5 shall not apply to the definition of "Model Articles" in Article 2 1.
- 2 2 6 in relation to any shareholder, references to any English legal term for any action, remedy, method of judicial proceeding, insolvency proceeding, event of incapacity, legal status, court, governmental or administrative authority or agency, official or any legal concept, practice or principle or thing shall in respect of any jurisdiction other than England where that shareholder is domiciled, resident, incorporated or carries on business be deemed to include what most approximates in that jurisdiction to the English legal term concerned, and
- 2 2 7 the headings shall not affect the construction or interpretation

3. QUORUM AND VOTING RIGHTS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

- 3 1 Without limiting the power of the Board under section 302 of the Act, a Principal Director may, acting alone, call a general meeting of the Company
- No business shall be transacted at any general meeting of the Company (including any adjourned general meeting) unless a quorum is present at the commencement of the meeting and also when that business is voted on
- Where the Company only has one shareholder for the time being, one qualifying person (as defined in section 318 of the Act) present at the meeting shall be a quorum. In any other case, the quorum shall be
 - 3 3 1 a Principal Shareholder present in person, by proxy or by authorised representation, or
 - 3 3 2 If the Company does not have a Principal Shareholder for the time being, any two shareholders present in person, by proxy or by authorised representative

Model Article 38 (Quorum for general meetings) shall be amended accordingly

The Principal Shareholder shall have, in aggregate, such number of votes at all meetings of the shareholders as shall establish as between the Principal Shareholder and all other shareholders (if any) a majority in the Principal Shareholder's favour on any and all resolutions proposed at any such meeting

4. NEW ISSUES OF SHARES

The Directors shall not exercise any power of the Company to allot shares or other securities in, or to grant rights to subscribe for, or convert into, shares or other securities of, the Company without the prior written consent of the Principal Shareholder Without limitation, the powers of the Directors under section 550 of the Act are limited accordingly

5. ARTICLE A

- Notwithstanding anything contained in these Articles, the Directors must not decline to register any transfer of shares in the Company and must not suspend any registration thereof, where such transfer is
 - to a bank or institution or provider of finance to which such shares have been mortgaged or charged by way of security (whether as lender, or agent and trustee for a group of banks or institutions or providers of finance or otherwise) or to any nominee of such a bank or institution or provider of finance (a Secured Institution), or to any nominee of such Secured Institution, pursuant to any such security,
 - delivered to the Company for registration by a Secured Institution or its nominee in order to perfect its security over shares,
 - 5 1 3 executed by a Secured Institution or its nominee pursuant to the power of sale or other power under any such security, or
 - executed by a receiver or manager appointed by or on behalf of any Secured Institution or its nominee, under any such security,

and furthermore, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in these Articles

- (a) no transferor of any shares in the Company or proposed transferor of such shares to a Secured Institution or to its nominee,
- (b) no Secured Institution or its nominee, and
- (c) no receiver or manager appointed by or on behalf of a Secured Institution or its nominee,

shall be required to provide any written notice to the Company or to offer the shares which are to be the subject of any such transfer to the shareholders for the time being of the Company or any of them, and no such shareholder shall have any right under these Articles or otherwise to require such shares to be transferred to them whether for consideration or not

Furthermore the Company shall have no lien on any shares, which have been charged by way of security to a Secured Institution and the relevant provision of the Model Articles dealing with the matters set out in Regulation 11 of the regulations contained in Table A in the schedule to the Companies (Tables A to F) Regulations 1985 (as amended by the Companies (Tables A-F (Amendment) Regulations 1985 and the Companies Act 1985 (Electronic Communications) Order 2000) relating to

liens over shares share not apply in respect of any such shares

6. DIRETORS GENERAL AUTHORITY

Any or all powers of the directors (or any of them) shall be restricted in such respects, to such extent and for such duration as a Principal Shareholder may from time to time by notice in writing to the Company prescribe

7. APPOINTMENT AND RETIREMENT OF DIRECTORS

- 7.1 Unless otherwise determined by ordinary resolution, the minimum number of Directors shall be one
- The Principal Shareholder shall have the right from time to time and at any time to appoint any person or persons as a Director or Directors and to remove such persons so appointed from office. Any such appointment or removal shall be effected by an instrument in writing signed by an authorised signatory on the Principal Shareholder's behalf and shall take effect when delivered to the registered office of the Company or to the secretary of the Company or when produced at a meeting of the Directors.
- Model Article 18 shall be amended by the inclusion of the words "notification of the director's removal is received by the Company from the Principal Shareholder pursuant to Article 8 1" as a new paragraph (g) at the end of that Model Article
- 7.4 Upon written request by the Principal Shareholder, the Company shall procure that any person so nominated by the Principal Shareholder is forthwith appointed as a director of any other member of the Group as shall be indicated in such request. The Company shall remove such person so appointed upon a written request to such effect from the Principal Shareholder.
- Figure 7.5 Every Principal Director appointed pursuant to Article 7.2 shall hold office until he is either removed in the manner provided by Article 7.2 or dies or vacates office pursuant to Model Article 18 (Termination of director's appointment)
- The Principal Shareholder shall have the right at any time and from time to time, by instrument in writing delivered to the Company or to the secretary of the Company or produced at a meeting of the Directors to
 - 7 6 1 designate any Director appointed by it pursuant to Article 7 2 as being the Director who shall constitute the Principal Director; and
 - 7 6 2 to remove such designation (whether or not in conjunction with the designation of an alternative Director to such position)
- 7 7 The Directors may, with the consent of the Principal Director (or if no person shall have been designated to hold such position, with the consent of the Principal Shareholder) appoint any person as chairperson of the Board. The chairperson shall not have a casting vote.
- 7 8 If the Principal Director is appointed chairperson of the Board, such Principal Director shall (subject to Article 12 (Voting Rights of Directors)) be entitled to exercise the enhanced voting rights set out in Article 12 1 2 however, the Principal Director shall not be entitled to a casting vote in respect of his role of chairperson
- 7 9 If the chairperson for the time being is unable to attend any meeting of the Board, the Principal Director (or if no person shall have been designated to hold such position, the Principal Shareholder) shall be entitled to appoint a Director previously nominated pursuant to Article 7 2 to act as chairperson at the meeting

- In addition to the power to nominate a Director pursuant to Article 7.2, the Principal Shareholder shall from time to time have the right to nominate one person to be an observer, who shall be entitled to receive notice of all meetings of Directors and of all directors meetings of other companies in the Group together with copies of all board papers as if he were a Director or a director of each such member of the Group and to attend, propose resolutions and speak at, but not vote at, any meeting of the Directors and any meeting of the directors of each member of the Group
- Any person holding office as a Director (other than a director nominated pursuant to Article 7.2) who is at any time an employee of or consultant (whether in his own right or as a named individual providing consultancy services through a service entity) to the Company or of any member of the Group shall automatically vacate such office if.
 - 7.11 1 he ceases (for whatever reason) to be an employee of or a consultant (whether in his own right or as a named individual providing consultancy services through a service entity) to the Company or of any member of the Group, or
 - 7 11 2 his employer or principal ceases to be a member of the Group (whether or not he ceases to be its employee or consultant (whether in his own right or as a named individual providing consultancy services through a service entity)

unless in conjunction with such cessation, such person is otherwise appointed as or continues to be an employee of or consultant (whether in his own right or as a named individual providing consultancy services through a service entity) to, the Company or of another continuing member of the Group

8. PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS

- 8 1 Decisions of the Directors may be taken
 - 8 1 1 at a Directors' meeting, or
 - 8 1 2 in the form of a Directors' written resolution
- Any Director may propose a Directors' written resolution. A Directors' written resolution is proposed by giving notice of the proposed resolution to the Directors.
- Notice of a proposed Directors' written resolution must be given to each Director and must indicate
 - 8 3 1 the proposed resolution, and
 - 8 3 2 the time by which it is proposed that the Directors should adopt it
- A proposed Directors' written resolution is adopted without need for a meeting of the Directors, when each Director who would be entitled to vote on the matter at a meeting of Directors has signed one or more copies of it or otherwise has responded in writing in a manner which clearly identifies the proposed written resolution to which such response is given, confirming agreement to such Directors' written resolution
- It is immaterial whether any Director signs the resolution before or after the time by which the notice proposed that it should be adopted
- Once a Directors' written resolution has been adopted, it must be treated as if it had been a decision taken at a Directors' meeting properly called and quorate in accordance with the Articles

- 8 7 No business of the Company shall be transacted at a meeting of the Board unless not less than 24 hours notice of the meeting has been given to each of the Directors
- Subject to Article 12 (Voting Rights of Directors), questions arising at a meeting of the Board shall be decided by a majority of votes
- Proceedings of committees of the Board shall be conducted in accordance with the regulations prescribed by the Board (if any). Subject to those regulations, such proceedings shall be conducted in accordance with applicable provisions regulating the proceedings of the Board. Where the Board resolves to delegate any of its powers, authorities and discretions to a committee and such resolution states that the committee shall consist of any one or more Directors, it shall not be necessary to give notice of a meeting of such committee to any Directors other than the Director or Directors who form the committee.
- All acts done in good faith by a meeting of the Board, or of a committee of the Board, or by a person acting as a Director, an alternate director or a committee member shall, notwithstanding that it may be discovered afterwards that there was a defect in the appointment of any person so acting or that any of them were disqualified from holding office, or had vacated office, or were not entitled to vote, be as valid as if every such person had been duly appointed and was qualified and had continued to be a Director, alternate director or committee member and entitled to vote
- Any Director or his alternate may validly participate in a meeting of the Board or a committee of the Board by conference telephone or other form of communication equipment if all persons participating in the meeting are able to hear and speak to each other throughout the meeting. A person so participating shall be deemed to be present in person at the meeting and shall accordingly be counted in a quorum and be entitled to vote. Such a meeting shall be deemed to take place where the largest group of those participating is assembled or, if there is no group that is larger than any other group, where the chairperson then is
- 8 12 Save with the consent of a Principal Director the Board shall not delegate any of its powers to a committee

9. DIRECTORS' ARRANGMENTS AND TRANSACTIONAL INTERESTS

- 9 1 Subject to sections 177(5) and 177(6) and sections 182(5) and 182(6) of the Act and provided he has declared the nature and extent of his interest in accordance with the requirements of the Act, a Director who is in any way, whether directly or indirectly, interested in an existing or proposed transaction or arrangement with the Company
 - 9 1 1 may be a party to, or otherwise interested in, any transaction or arrangement (whether proposed or otherwise) with the Company or in which the Company is otherwise (directly or indirectly) interested,
 - 9 1 2 shall be an Eligible Director for the purposes of any proposed decision of the Directors (or committee of Directors) in respect of such transaction or arrangement or proposed transaction or arrangement in which he is interested.
 - 9 1 3 shall be entitled to count in the quorum and vote at a meeting of Directors (or of a committee of the Directors) or participate in any unanimous decision, in respect of such transaction or arrangement or proposed transaction or arrangement in which he is interested,
 - 9 1 4 may act by himself or his firm in a professional capacity for the Company

- (otherwise than as auditor) and he or his firm shall be entitled to remuneration for professional services as if he were not a Director;
- may be a director or other officer of, or employed by, or a party to a transaction or arrangement with, or otherwise interested in, any body corporate in which the Company is otherwise (directly or indirectly) interested, and
- shall not, save as he may otherwise agree, be accountable to the Company for any benefit which he (or a person connected with him (as defined in section 252 of the Act)) derives from any such transaction or arrangement or from any such office or employment or from any interest in any such body corporate and no such transaction or arrangement shall be liable to be avoided on the grounds of any such interest or benefit nor shall the receipt of any such remuneration or other benefit constitute a breach of his duty under section 176 of the Act
- The provisions of Article 9 1 1 to 9 1 5 (inclusive) are subject, where applicable, to any terms and conditions imposed by the Directors in accordance with Article 10 3 Nothing within this Article 9 2 shall limit the rights of the Principal Director(s) under Article 10 (Authorisation of Directors' Conflicts of Interest)

10. AUTHORISATION OF DIRECTORS' CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

- The Directors may, in accordance with the requirements set out in this Article 10, authorise (an Authorisation) any matter or situation proposed to them by any Director which would, if not authorised, involve a Director (an Interested Director) breaching his duty under section 175 of the Act to avoid conflicts of interest (Conflict)
- 10.2 Any Authorisation under Article 10 will be effective only if
 - the matter in question shall have been proposed by a Director for consideration in the same way that any other matter may be proposed to the Directors under the provisions of these Articles or otherwise in such alternative manner as the Directors may determine,
 - any requirement as to the quorum for consideration of the relevant matter is met without counting the Interested Director; and
 - the matter was agreed to without the Interested Director voting or would have been agreed to if the Interested Director's vote had not been counted
- Any Authorisation of a Conflict under Article 10 may (whether at the time of giving the authorisation or subsequently).
 - 10 3 1 extend to any actual or potential conflict of interest which may reasonably be expected to arise out of the matter or situation so authorised,
 - 10 3 2 provide that the Interested Director be excluded from the receipt of documents and information and the participation in discussions (whether at meetings of the Directors or otherwise) related to the Conflict This Article 10 3 1 shall not apply in the case of the Principal Director,
 - subject to Article 10.4 and without limiting the rights of the Principal Director in Article 10.7, impose upon the Interested Director such other terms for the purposes of dealing with the Conflict as the Principal Director thinks fit,
 - 10 3 4 without prejudice to Article 10 8, provide that, where the Interested Director

obtains, or has obtained (through his involvement in the Conflict and otherwise than through his position as a Director of the Company) information that is confidential to a third party, he will not be obliged to disclose that information to the Company, or to use it in relation to the Company's affairs where to do so would amount to a breach of that confidence

- Where it is the intention of the Directors to impose a condition on the Principal Director pursuant to Article 10.3, such condition shall firstly be approved in writing by the Principal Shareholder acting at the Principal Shareholder's absolute discretion. Failure to obtain such approval shall invalidate any condition and shall give to the Principal Shareholder the right (but not obligation) to specify in writing an alternative condition.
- The Directors may revoke or vary such Authorisation at any time, but this will not affect anything done by the Interested Director, prior to such revocation or variation, in accordance with the terms of such Authorisation
- 10 6 It is recognised that
 - 10 6 1 the Principal Director may have shareholder(s) and/or members and/or officer(s) and/or employees and/or consultants, and/or
 - 10 6 2 the persons set out in Article 10 6 1 may have connected persons (within the meaning of section 252 of the Act).

in each case who

- (a) are employees, consultants, directors, members, representatives, partners or other officers of other members of the Group, a shareholder and/or an affiliate of such entities (each an Associated Entity and together Associated Entities),
- (b) may be taken to have, through previous or existing dealings, a commercial relationship with one or more Associated Entities,
- (c) may be directors and/or officers of, or are employed by, or otherwise involved in the business of other entities in which one or more Associated Entities has or may have an interest from time to time,
- (d) may be directors and/or officers of, and/or be employed by, or otherwise involved in the business of other entities who may from time to time provide to any member of the Group loans, funding or other forms of finance whether secured or unsecured,
- 10 6 3 the Principal Director may be an employee, consultant, director, member, representative, partner or other officer of one or more Associated Entities,
- 10 6 4 may be taken to have, through previous or existing dealings, a commercial relationship with one or more Associated Entities,
- 10 6 5 the Principal Director may be a director or other officer of, or be employed by, or otherwise involved in the business of other entities in which one or more Associated Entities has or may have an interest from time to time,
- 10 6 6 the Principal Director may be a director or other officer of, or be employed by, or otherwise involved in the business of other entities who may from time to time provide to any member of the Group loans, funding or other forms of finance whether secured or unsecured, and

the Principal Director shall not, by reason of his office, be accountable to the Company for any benefit (whether direct or indirect) which he derives or which may be derived by any of the persons set out at Article 10 6 1 from any such other directorship, membership, office, employment, relationship or involvement with any such Associated Entity or with any entity referred to in Articles 10 6 4 and/or 10 6 5

and he shall not be in breach of the duties he owes to the Company as a result of any Conflict which arises from the relationships contemplated by this Article, including, but not limited to, proposals for financing or otherwise promoting the business of (whether in competition with any other member of the Group or not) any such other entity. Accordingly, no further Authorisation under Article 10.1 shall be necessary in respect of any such interest.

- In circumstances where there exists a Conflict in respect of the Principal Director and notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles, the Principal Director affected shall
 - 10.7.1 be entitled to receive any papers or other documents in relation to, or concerning, matters to which the Conflict relates,
 - 10 7 2 not be excluded from those parts of meetings of the Directors or meetings of a committee of the Directors at which matters to which the Conflict relates are discussed
- Any information the Principal Director obtains, other than in his capacity as a Director or employee of the Company, which is confidential in relation to an entity referred to in Article 10.6, need not be disclosed or used for the benefit of the Company where such disclosure or use would constitute a breach of confidence
- A Director, notwithstanding his office, may be a partner, director (or because of the fiduciary relationship established by reason of being a Director) or other officer of, employed or engaged by, or otherwise interested (including by the holding of shares in) in his appointor(s) and/or any member of the Group and no further Authorisation under Article 10 1 shall be necessary in respect of any such interest
- 10 10 The Principal Director shall be entitled from time to time to disclose to his appointor(s) such information concerning the business and affairs of the Company as he shall at his discretion see fit.
- A Director is not required, by reason of being a Director (or because of the fiduciary relationship established by reason of being a Director), to account to the Company for any remuneration, profit or other benefit which he derives from or in connection with a relationship involving a Conflict which has been authorised by the Directors in accordance with or is otherwise authorised by these Articles or by the Company in general meeting (subject in each case to any terms and conditions attaching to that authorisation) and no contract shall be liable to be avoided on such grounds

11. QUORUM FOR DIRECTORS MEETINGS

- Subject to Article 11.3, the quorum at any meeting of the Board (including adjourned meetings) shall be at least the Principal Director (or his duly appointed alternate) Model Article 11 (Quorum for directors' meetings) shall be amended accordingly
- No business shall be conducted at any meeting of the Board unless a quorum is present at the beginning of the meeting and also when that business is voted on
- 11.3 For the purposes of any meeting (or part of a meeting) of the Board

- 11 3 1 held pursuant to Article 10 (Authonsation of Directors' Conflicts of Interest) to authorise a Conflict of the Principal Director, or
- 11 3 2 at which the Principal Director is not permitted to vote on any resolution in accordance with Article 10 3 as a result of his or its own Conflict.

the quorum for such meeting (or part of a meeting) shall be one Eligible Director

12. VOTING RIGHTS OF DIRECTORS

- 12.1 Subject to Article 12.2, at a meeting of the Board (including adjourned meetings)
 - 12 1 1 every Eligible Director shall (subject to Article 12 1 1) have one vote upon each resolution proposed, and
 - 12.1.2 the Principal Director shall (exercisable at the Principal Director's discretion) have the right to elect to exercise an enhanced vote. Where such right is exercised the Principal Director shall have in aggregate such number of votes upon each resolution in respect of which he shall exercise such enhanced voting right, such number of votes as shall establish as between the Principal Director and the other Eligible Directors a majority in the Principal Director's favour.
- At any meeting (or part of a meeting) of the Board held pursuant to Article 10 (Authorisation of Directors' Conflicts of Interest) to authorise a Conflict in respect of any Director, including (but not limited to) the Principal Director, such conflicted Director shall not be entitled to vote on any resolution which shall propose an Authorisation of his or its own Conflict in accordance with Article 10.2

13. ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

- Any Director (other than an alternate Director) (the **appointor**) may appoint as an alternate any other Director, or any other person approved by resolution of the Directors, to
 - 13 1 1 exercise that Director's powers, and
 - 13 1 2 carry out that Director's responsibilities,

in relation to the taking of decisions by the Directors, in the absence of the alternate's appointor. In these Articles, where the context so permits, the term "Principal Director" shall include any alternate director appointed by such Principal Director.

- Any appointment or removal of an alternate must be effected by notice in writing to the Company signed by the appointor, or in any other manner approved by the Directors
- 13 3 The notice must
 - 13 3 1 identify the proposed alternate, and
 - 13.3.2 In the case of a notice of appointment, contain a statement signed by the proposed alternate that the proposed alternate is willing to act as the alternate of the Director giving the notice
- An alternate director may act as alternate director to more than one Director and has the same rights in relation to any decision of the Directors as the alternate's appointor. An alternate director who is acting as alternate director to more than one director shall be entitled to one vote for each director for which he is acting as

alternate

- 13.5 Except as the Articles specify otherwise, alternate directors
 - 13 5 1 are deemed for all purposes to be Directors,
 - 13 5 2 are liable for their own acts and omissions,
 - 13 5 3 are subject to the same restrictions as their appointors, and
 - 13 5 4 are not deemed to be agents of or for their appointors,

and, in particular (without limitation), each alternate director shall be entitled to receive notice of all meetings of Directors and of all meetings of committees of directors of which his appointor is a member

- 13.6 A person who is an alternate director (as opposed to a pre-existing Director)
 - may be counted as participating for the purposes of determining whether a quorum is present (but only if that person's appointor is not participating) but shall only count once in the quorum if acting as alternate for more than one Director,
 - may participate in a unanimous decision of the Directors (but only if his appointor is a Director who would be entitled to vote on the matter at a meeting of Directors in relation to that decision, but does not participate), and
 - 13 6 3 shall not be counted as more than one Director for the purposes of articles 13 6 1 and 13 6 1
- A Director who is also an alternate director is entitled, in the absence of his appointor, to a separate vote on behalf of his appointor, in addition to his own vote on any decision of the Directors (provided that his appointor is would be entitled to vote on the matter at a meeting of directors in relation to that decision), but shall not count as more than one Director for the purposes of determining whether a quorum is present
- An alternate director may be paid expenses and may be indemnified by the Company to the same extent as his appointor but shall not be entitled to receive any remuneration from the Company for serving as an alternate director except such part of the alternate's appointor's remuneration as the appointor may direct by notice in writing made to the Company
- 13.9 An alternate director's appointment as an alternate terminates
 - 13.9.1 when the alternate's appointor revokes the appointment by notice to the Company in writing specifying when it is to terminate,
 - on the occurrence, in relation to the alternate, of any event which, if it occurred in relation to the alternate's appointor, would result in the termination of the appointor's appointment as a Director,
 - 13 9 3 on the death of the alternate's appointor, or
 - 13 9 4 when the alternate director's appointor's appointment as a Director terminates

14. SECRETARY

The Directors may appoint any person who is willing to act as the secretary for such term, at such remuneration and upon such conditions as they may think fit and from time to time remove such person and, if the Directors so decide, appoint a replacement, in each case by a decision of the Directors

15. INDEMNITY

- 15 1 Subject to the provisions of the Act, but without prejudice to any indemnity to which the person concerned may otherwise be entitled every Director, alternate director, secretary or other officer of any member of the Group (including any company which is a trustee of an occupational pension scheme (as defined by section 235(6) of the Act) (excluding the Auditors, unless and to the extent that the Board determines otherwise) (each a Relevant Officer) shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all costs, charges, losses, damages and liabilities, incurred by him in the actual or purported execution or discharge of his duties or exercise of his powers or otherwise in relation to such duties, including (but without limitation) any liability incurred in defending any proceedings, whether criminal or civil, which relate to anything done or omitted or alleged to have been done or omitted by him as an officer or employee of any member of the Group and in which judgment is given in his favour or in which he is acquitted or in connection with any application under section 205 of the Act in which relief is granted to him by any court of competent jurisdiction or which are otherwise disposed of without any finding or admission of any material breach of duty on his part or in connection with any application in which the court grants him, in his capacity as a Relevant Officer. relief from liability for negligence, default or breach of trust in relation to any member of the Group's affairs
- The Company may provide any Relevant Officer with funds to meet expenditure incurred or to be incurred by him in connection with any proceedings or application referred to in Article 15.1 and otherwise may take action to enable any such Relevant Officer to avoid incurring such expenditure
- This Article 15 does not authorise any indemnity which would be prohibited or rendered void by any provision of the Act or by any other provision of law

16. INSURANCE

The Directors may decide to purchase and maintain insurance, at the expense of the Company, for the benefit of any relevant officer in respect of any Relevant Loss

17. SHARE CERTIFICATES AND EVIDENCE

The Company may in any manner permitted by the applicable provisions of Part 4 of the Act execute any share certificate, warrant or other document creating or evidencing any security allotted by the Company or any right or option to subscribe granted by the Company

18. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS AND RESERVES

The Board shall exercise all voting and other rights or powers of control exercisable by the Company in relation to itself and its subsidiary undertaking so as to secure (but as regards its subsidiary undertakings only in so far as by the exercise of such rights or powers of control the Board can secure) that

- no shares or other securities are issued or allotted by any such subsidiary and no rights are granted which might require the issue of any such shares or securities otherwise than to the Company or to one of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, and
- neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries transfers or disposes of any shares or securities of any subsidiary of the Company or any interest therein or any rights

attached thereto otherwise than to the Company or one of its wholly-owned subsidiaries,

without in either case the previous consent in writing of a Principal Shareholder

19. CHANGE OF NAME

The Company may change its name by decision of the Directors provided that either

- an Principal Director votes in favour of the resolution or otherwise consents to such change in writing, or
- 19 2 (If there is no Principal Director in office) the change is approved in advance by a Principal Shareholder, or
- (if there is no Principal Director nor a Principal Shareholder) the change is approved by a special resolution of the shareholders

---end of document---